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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – MAY 27, 2010

(Time Noted – 7:01 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all of the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will then consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; but may take up to 62 days to reach a determination. I would ask if anyone has a cell phone to please turn it off so that we would not be interrupted. And also when speaking, please speak directly into the microphone. And I'd also like to mention that all Members of the Board have visited all of the sites that will be under discussion this evening. Roll call please. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY

BRENDA DRAKE 

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY









DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

ABSENT: RUTH EATON

ALSO PRESENT: 
BETTY GENNARELLI, ZBA SECRETARY

                                    GERALD CANFIELD, FIRE INSPECTOR 

(Time Noted – 7:03 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MAY 27, 2010             (Time Noted – 7:03 PM) 



DANIEL & MELISSA KUHN

52 WINONA AVENUE, NBGH







(69-4-14) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback to build a covered front porch.  

Chairperson Cardone: The first applicant this evening Daniel and Melissa Kuhn.                

Ms. Gennarelli: For tonight's applications all of the Public Hearing Notices for all the new applications being heard this evening were published in The Sentinel on Tuesday, May 18th and in the Mid-Hudson Times on Wednesday, May 19th. This applicant sent out sixteen registered letters, fifteen were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. O.K. for the record please identify yourself. 

Mr. Kuhn: Daniel Kuhn, we would like to replace our front porch on our house and just put a second story addition and we just want to rebuild the exact same thing that was there and just an open front porch with a roof over it. 

Mr. McKelvey: You are not enclosing it you are just putting a roof over it?

Mr. Kuhn: Right. 

Ms. Drake: There was no roof there before?

Mr. Kuhn: No, it was fully enclosed before actually.

Ms. Drake: Oh.

Mr. Kuhn: It was all glass windows but we just want an open porch.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: Why was it written for non-conformity? Is this bigger than the original porch?

Ms. Gennarelli: Ron, could you pull your microphone in a little closer please?

Mr. Hughes: Sure. 

Mr. Kuhn: No, they said I didn't have enough front yard because of where the road is placed, I mean, there's 65 feet but the road is not where it could be so it says I don't have enough front yard but I have 65 feet of grass. 

Mr. Maher: Actually I believe it states, Joe's report says increasing the degree of non-conformity by increasing roof height and pitch only.   

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so it’s the up thing that's going on there?

Mr. Maher: Going up, right. 

Mr. Hughes: All right. Thank you. I have nothing else. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any questions or comments from the public?  

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:05 PM)

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MAY 27, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 9:55 PM) 



DANIEL & MELISSA KUHN

52 WINONA AVENUE, NBGH







(69-4-14) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback to build a covered front porch.  

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On the application of Daniel and Melissa Kuhn seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the front yard setback to build a covered front porch. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: The only thing he is doing is putting a roof over the porch. The same size he had before.

Mr. Manley: I don't think its really going to change the character of the neighborhood.

Mr. McKelvey: No.

Mr. Manley: I think probably it will add a little bit to the neighborhood. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval?

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we approve.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ. 

ABSENT: RUTH EATON

 (Time Noted – 9:57 PM)
ZBA MEETING – MAY 27, 2010             (Time Noted – 7:06 PM) 



SANTA MONICA HOLDINGS LLC/
5266 ROUTE 9W, NBGH

    KEITH SILFSTEIN 


(20-2-30.21) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an Interpretation of 185-19 (A) (1) relative to a request for site plan approval to build a newly constructed "adult use" as a restaurant and gentlemen's club and for an existing separate building for an unspecified retail use.    

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Santa Monica Holdings, LLC.                

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out twenty-seven registered letters, twenty-seven were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Mr. Minuta: Is it all right if I place this here?

Chairperson Cardone: That's fine.

Mr. Minuta: Good evening, Chairwoman Cardone, ladies and gentlemen of the Board. My name is Joseph Minuta with Minuta Architecture here to represent Santa Monica Holdings for this project. We appeared before the Planning Board on February 4, 2010 and we've been referred to your Board per Mr. Donnelly's letter. We're here per Mr. Donnelly's letter of February 11, 2010. We are actually here for your guidance this evening. What we have is an existing non-conforming use. The current use is in use and they wish to simply container this use and to building on the site that we propose, there are some images in front of you. I'll just take…

Ms. Gennarelli: If you could get a little closer to the mic?

Mr. Minuta: Is that better? 

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes, that's much better. Thank you.

Mr. Minuta: O.K. What we have is the existing building here as seen from Route 9W and we've made some improvements to that building as far as a renovation to the exterior. This would be a retail store of sorts, a retail use permitted within the zone. The new building is the building here that's situated in the property in this location and we're simply taking this existing property, continuing this use into a new building improving the lot. The owner has made a commitment to some lush landscaping, beautiful new building and we're basically here to understand how it is that we can do this within the confines of the Zoning Law. 

Chairperson Cardone: And the original building would be used for what purpose?

Mr. Minuta: That would be used for a retail use within the zone.

Mr. Manley: You had made the indication that you're coming before us to see how the Board could make it work within the Zoning Law. Shouldn't it be you and your client making your case to the Board as to how you believe it would fit under the current and existing Code?

Mr. Minuta: Fair enough, we actually came here to…to the Planning Board referring us here. With respect to the existing use, its existing non-conformance, it is a use that is…a…cannot be omitted within the State of New York. The Town must make accommodations for this use. Being that its at the existing site our thought was that we've already got the existing use so we're really looking for an understanding of eating and drinking establishment, parking spaces, things of that nature as a determination from your Board so that we can continue to go through the planning of this site.

Mr. Manley: O.K. I guess my question would be if you have an existing non-conforming use, that's the actual structure that, and again I'm speaking for my opinion, you have a structure there that's non-conforming so what you're saying is you want to abandon the use of that structure for the use that it currently is used for, correct?

Mr. Minuta: Restate that for me, please.

Mr. Donovan: Well, maybe Jim we can do this? As Mr. Manley has pointed out, typically what happens is you have an application and we rule on your application. The Planning Board has indicated that it appears to them that the operation of this new use in a new building, which as I understand your application is to take your existing use, maybe modify that slightly but put it in a different building.

Mr. Minuta: Actually we're not modifying it whatsoever. The current use is an adult use with a a eating and drinking establishment. We do have a food permit from the Orange County Department of Health for this facility to serve food so we're not changing anything.

Mr. Donovan: It's a steak house now?

Mr. Minuta: A it's…they serve steaks, they serve burgers, they serve what have you 

Mr. Donovan: O.K. but you're going to take that use and put it on a different location. You're going to build another building on this lot…

Mr. Minuta: We're building a new and improved building on the lot, yes.  

Mr. Donovan: So, the issue then that the Planning Board has identified is that the operation of this non-conforming use in a new building is the placement of that use on a different portion of the lot within the meaning of Section of 185-19 (A) (1) and so the Planning Board is saying this referral is in part for the purpose of consideration of a use variance. Do you agree with that?

Mr. Minuta: I don't agree with that only because the use exists. If we were under any other…if we were under any other provision of this we might be here for an area variance or an increase of area variance as we saw in the previous application. We're really doing nothing more than that. We're not here at all.

Mr. Donovan: But I see you.

Mr. Minuta: I…I know I...we're…we're following the chain of command.

Mr. Donovan: So let me understand your position. Is it your position that you don't need any relief?

Mr. Minuta: It's our position that we should be able to continue this use in a new building and improve the property. The Planning Board has sent us here I believe under the guise that it is your purview as the Zoning Board to make a determination.

Mr. Manley: So they are not here for a variance. They are just here for an interpretation of the law, 185-19.

Mr. Donovan: 185-19 (A)(1), which will be a determination by us whether or not what you propose…here's what it says, a non-conforming use shall not be enlarged, extended, reconstructed or restored except in accordance with B (2) herein, or placed on a different portion of the lot or parcel of land occupied by such use on the effective date of this chapter, nor shall any external evidence of such use be increased by any means whatsoever. So it sounds to me like you are, in fact, moving this to a different portion of the lot.

Mr. Minuta: A…that could be construed that way, yes.   

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Minuta: Keeping in mind that by omission of…by omission of this within the Zoning Law, this particular use, it is thereby prohibited within the zone. However, the State supercedes that in in sense that it…it cannot be omitted from the use in an area. So there's that sort of (inaudible).   

Mr. Donovan: Right, I don't think there's any, not to belabor this point but I don't think there's any issue that you could continue the use, the issue is your modification of the non-conforming use, moving it to a different area of the lot then adding another use on there. 

Mr. Minuta: That sounds reasonable. 

Chairperson Cardone: Are there any questions from the Board?  

Mr. Hughes: I have several questions. Isn't this lot a rather large lot four or five acres or so? 

Mr. Minuta: Yes, it is. 

Mr. Hughes: And isn't the famous Jew's Creek part of the lot? Doesn't it subterraneously flow right through that whole part of the world?

Mr. Minuta: Yes, it does. 

Mr. Hughes: And, I believe that this under a different owner was before not only this Board but the Planning Board if my memory serves me correctly.

Chairperson Cardone: That is correct for a subdivision.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so, I believe, that why you were held down to do what was done and not this group here but the prior group was because of the stream and it’s a very historic and noted stream. It’s the first Jewish settlement in North America to be specific, 1716. It’s the feeder and the headwaters and it runs two ways right there. The reason that they were painted into a corner on what they could and couldn't do, the prior owner's was because of that stream and the DEC, the Corp of Engineers and some of the other alphabet mafias that run around. So I think that I'm a little bit confused about several things here. I've read letters from our Town attorney and I've read letters from the Planning Board attorney as well and I think all of them say the same thing that Mr. Minuta indicated earlier that the use is allowed even though its not listed or mentioned. But now to change from the one building to the other, did they say anything to you about that stream or about being on the other side of that stream or removing the building? Did they suggest that you remove the building, or…? 

Mr. Minuta: A…that has not been suggested to us to remove that building, a, the stream exists, its all one contiguous lot…

Mr. Hughes: Basically right down the middle of that four acres too, no?

Mr. Minuta: Yes for the most part.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Minuta: We have done environmentals on this as far as we have letters from Kleinfelder Engineering regarding species, endangered species, there is no affect of that so really the property exists as it does. Its pretty much been given, from our engineers, the go ahead for the design that we proposed. 

Ms. Drake: Could you show where the stream is?

Mr. Minuta: Sure. 

Chairperson Cardone: Ron.

Mr. Hughes: I have some more questions too.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. I just wanted to answer something that you had said. Looking at 185-19 (A)(1) the non-conforming use shall not be enlarged, extended, reconstructed, or restored. It's being relocated, that's the main issue.

Mr. Hughes: But that's not a reconstruction, a reconstruction is if you decide to put an extension on the building or move it outward or it doesn't say anything about an existing footprint or an additional footprint and that's where I listened when Mr. Minuta was speaking and when our attorney read the section I don't know if that reconstruction is the word that we're looking at here. I think this is a brand new installation. It's on a lot that's prohibited…  

Chairperson Cardone: It said or placed on a different portion of the lot or parcel of land. So it is being placed on a different part.

Mr. Donovan: I think that's the operative part of the paragraph.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so the reconstruction isn't a part of this?

Mr. Donovan: No.

Mr. Hughes: How did the Planning Board push you this far before it came to an interpretation issue?

Mr. Minuta: We had our initial concept plan before the Planning Board on February 4th and based on the conversation that ensued there with the Board Members it was the recommendation of Mr. Donnelly that we come to the Zoning Board for an interpretation or decision based on what he had stated in his letter.

Mr. Donovan: I think, Ron, reading Mike's letter what he is saying is if that provision of 185-19 (A)(1) applies that you can't place it on a different portion of the lot or parcel of land occupied such use on the effective date of this chapter, if that does in fact apply then to do what they want to do would need a use variance. If we decide that this does not apply we would have to interpret the Code as saying that in the B zone, the eating and drinking places, I think there's a restaurant use allowed in here that this use proposed, the adult use/restaurant would fall within the parameters of a permitted use in the B zoning district.

Mr. Hughes: An eating and drinking establishment?

Mr. Donovan: Well we would have to…we would have to render that interpretation. The…I think we need to get over what I think is the considerable hurdle which is the prohibition of…of placement on a different portion of the lot. Because if the use is in fact not a permitted use then they can't…they can't do what they're asking to do without a variance. 

Mr. Hughes: But how can you say its not a permitted use when State law provides for this type of…entertainment if you will or whatever you'd like to call.

Mr. Donovan: Well, certainly State law is going to tell us that you cannot prohibit adult uses throughout your Town. O.K.? I don't know necessarily that the corollary of that is that means the ZBA has to allow them in a specific place. And I don't know that we have the obligation to determine that this is, does not run afoul of 185-19 (A)(1) because I think a plain reading of that provision of the Code is it does, in fact, run afoul of that provision. So our alternative is to either grant a variance and the Planning Board suggests that's a use variance or alternatively the applicant has remedies to pursue. I don't know, we're not a legislative body.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, all right well thanks for clarifying that part of it. That will make the rest of this easier. Would you say then at this point it is a use issue?

Mr. Donovan: Yes, I would, yeah, in my…in my…

Mr. Hughes: Because it appears that way to me and I'm wondering why it went this far…

Mr. Donovan: Well I don't think it went that far. I think you had one meeting at the Planning Board and the Planning Board said I think you have a use issue better go see the ZBA. 

Mr. Minuta: Well we did meet with the Planning Board to discuss this project. There was discussion whether it was restaurant or eating and drinking establishment and so forth and so we ended up here. 

Mr. Donovan: How many times did you appear before the Planning Board?

Mr. Minuta: Once.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. so I don't think that… 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I was under the impression that there was two or three meetings from what I was reading. I read a letter from Donnelly and I read another letter from the Town attorney so I thought that there was a spot in between there. I'll have to check the dates. 

Chairperson Cardone: I didn't see anything the Town attorney only from Mike Donnelly.

Mr. Hughes: Maybe it was something to the Planning Board. I read all the minutes of all the Boards so that nobody can slip through the cracks. 

Chairperson Cardone: But the only thing that's before us tonight is the interpretation. Any other questions or comments from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public?
Inaudible audience member

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me.  

Chairperson Cardone: You have to use the microphone and state your name and address please.

Mr. Rinaldi: That would be a problem. The address would be a problem but it…it…a

Chairperson Cardone: Your name.

Mr. Rinaldi: I haven't seen anything, if I could identify…

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. You have to identify yourself for the record.  

Inaudible audience member

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me.  

Chairperson Cardone: You have to identify yourself for the record.

Mr. Rinaldi: My name is James Rinaldi. 

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Rinaldi: I represent the Futhba Incorporated, we're on Route 9W. I believe we're right across the street from this establishment. It's an adult entertainment establishment. Right?

Chairperson Cardone: That's correct.

Mr. Rinaldi: You asked me to be here. I'm here. I mean I…if they want to build an adult establishment it doesn't mean anything to me as long as they keep the traffic out of the road. That's all I can say. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Rinaldi: All right. I don't know anything else about it. I know that they need lots of parking because they park…sometimes we find vehicles parked in our driveway and we have…

Chairperson Cardone: Excuse me; those issues would be taken up at the Planning Board level.

Mr. Rinaldi: All right.

Chairperson Cardone: Right now we're just looking at an interpretation of the Code.

Mr. Rinaldi: So there's no need for me to be here then?

Chairperson Cardone: Well everyone who lives within a certain radius would be given a notice.

Mr. Rinaldi: Oh, all right. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. any other questions from the public, comments? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing?

Mr. Donovan: Well can I just? It seems to me, if I understand where we're going correctly, we've identified an issue where you…to go forward, you're going to need a use variance. Is that where we…? I just want to be clear that you don't have any…

Chairperson Cardone: I'm guessing but we can't predict what the vote of the Board would be…

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: …on the interpretation.

Mr. Donovan: I just want to be clear to you that unless you want to reapply you don't have any proof at all in front of the Board that would enable the Board to grant you a use variance. I don't know if you want to fall back and submit additional proof.

Mr. Hughes: We're here for the interpretation. 

Chairperson Cardone: We…we're here for the interpretation and we would have to have time to look over any materials that were presented to us if you were to ask for a use variance.

Mr. Minuta: Agreed. You know, as stated, as we applied with the provision, number two of the application, 185-19 (A)(1) and then the description of the variance sought was the referral from Planning Board's letter. Based on that we have tonight's application being Santa Monica Holdings LLC for an interpretation 185-19 (A)(1) site plan approval to build a newly constructed adult use as a restaurant and gentlemen's club for an existing separate building for an unspecified retail use. So that's why we're tonight as far as what's been published.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Well I have some…another question while everybody is here. If the applicant were to apply for a use variance and the use is limited to what's listed in the district and the state law tells you that you have to support it in some fashion and can't deny it, where are we going? Isn't it just an automatic? Or do we have to go through the process?

Mr. Donovan: Well I'll tell you Ron. You always have to go through the process. You have to have some sort of record. 

Mr. Hughes: All right but do you not agree that if we go to use the applicants held to proving that if he invested his money in any other use that's allowed in that district he would not be able to receive the return that he's getting on his money in this situation and because on that 9W corridor there's one of everything in the world he would be in competition times ten with everything that's listed in that district? So it’s a mute point.

Mr. Donovan: Well I knew we were doing too much agreeing at the last meeting because…

Mr. Hughes: Well O.K. put them on.

Mr. Donovan: I mean, there needs to be some evidence in the record that's going to justify if the interpretation is that they need a use variance then they have to provide the proof that's required by law before the Board can issue a use variance.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so maybe I'm looking too far ahead into the future but when they come back here with that going on, how can you tell them no?

Mr. Donovan: You know you have to judge it on the evidence and the proof that's before you at the time.

Mr. Hughes: All right, I have nothing further.

Ms. Drake: Just because its allowed by the State doesn't necessarily always mean its allowed where they're proposing it. 

Mr. Hughes: Really?

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: I don't know that to be true, you'd have to show me that one.

Ms. Drake: I thought that was how he explained it before.  

Mr. Hughes: Well maybe that's how he explained it but I know what the state law tells you in 239. You could arbitrarily block an applicant out of business if you had that…

Mr. Donovan: Well you can never act in an arbitrary fashion…no matter what...

Mr. Hughes: Or capricious.

Mr. Donovan: …you can't act in an arbitrary fashion.

Mr. Hughes: Oh no, well…all right I'm just… 

Mr. Donovan: Well, I mean, you can but you're not supposed to. You frequently act in an arbitrary fashion.

Mr. Hughes: Only after the meetings.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Minuta: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:27 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MAY 27, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 9:57 PM) 



SANTA MONICA HOLDINGS LLC/
5266 ROUTE 9W, NBGH

    KEITH SILFSTEIN 


(20-2-30.21) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an Interpretation of 185-19 (A) (1) relative to site plan approval to build a newly constructed "adult use" as a restaurant and gentlemen's club and for an existing separate building for an unspecified retail use.    

Chairperson Cardone: On the next application Santa Monica Holdings, seeking an Interpretation of 185-19 (A) (1) relative to a request for site plan approval to build a newly constructed "adult use" as a restaurant and gentlemen's club and for an existing separate building for an unspecified retail use. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Manley: Our Code seems to be very clear with respect to newly constructed and I really don't feel that the request falls within the basis of the Code. I think a use variance would be a more appropriate tool for this. 

Ms. Drake: I agree with Jim's interpretation. 

Mr. Donovan: So then I guess that the motion would be to deny the applicant's request for an interpretation that there proposal is consistent with 185-19 (A) (1) and that a use variance is required. 

Mr. Manley: Yes. 

Ms. Drake: I'll second that.

Ms. Gennarelli: Were you the first on that, Jim?

Mr. Manley: Yes.    

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Thank you.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion for denying the interpretation is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY


DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ. 

ABSENT: RUTH EATON                                       








(Time Noted – 9:59 PM)
ZBA MEETING – MAY 27, 2010             (Time Noted – 7:27 PM) 



FRANK & LUCINDA LANAVA, JR. 
107 HEATHER CIRCLE, NBGH







(115-2-12) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for one and the combined side yards setbacks and the maximum lot surface coverage to keep prior built rear and side decks on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Frank and Lucinda Lanava, Jr.                

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out thirty-two registered letters, thirty-two were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Glenn: Members of the Board, I am Stewart Glenn, an attorney with Glenn & Breheny, PLLC with offices at 372 South Plank Road, in the Town of Newburgh. I appear on behalf of Frank C. Lanava, Jr. and Lucinda Lanava respecting their application for three area variances for premises known as 107 Heather Circle. The Lanavas purchased the premises in question from developer Amber Fields Associates in 1990. A year after they purchased the premises, the Lanavas hired a contractor to build the deck which is the subject of this application for area variances. The contractor was to obtain all necessary Permits and to build the deck in accordance with all Laws and Ordinances. The contractor built the deck properly. I call your attention to the letter in your packet from Charles T. Brown, professional engineer, dated March 23, 2010, which certifies that the deck meets all current New York State Building Codes. I am told that at the time the deck was constructed the parcel after construction conformed to the then Zoning Ordinance. Apparently what the contractor did not do was to obtain a Permit from the Town. Approximately a year after that construction, the Lanavas contracted with Galati Pools to build a swimming pool on the premises. Such was built and the necessary Permits and certificates were issued by the Town. At the time of the inspections by the Town concerning the swimming pool no one advised the Lanavas that there was an issue with not having the proper Permits for the adjacent deck, which had been built the year before. It was only upon the sale of the premises that the Lanavas discovered that there was a problem with a Permit for the deck and under the current Zoning Ordinance three area variances would be needed. As is stated in the application before the Board the Lanavas discovered this variance issue after the contract of sale was executed and the contract purchasers were about to close title on their existing home. The Lanavas were building a home in another state and Mrs. Lanava had to move to that state quickly in order to accept her new work position. The potential financial consequences to the Lanavas and their contract purchasers regarding this issue are enormous. At this point, the Lanavas have left the state due to their obligations elsewhere. I was told by the Board Secretary, Betty Gennarelli, that the Board makes a physical inspection of the premises. From that inspection I am sure the Board has learned that the Lanava property is in great condition and the deck in question is built...is well built and adds to the quality of the neighborhood. For twenty years the Lanavas have been great neighbors and have been an asset to the neighborhood and the Town. In your packets you should find letters in support of the requested area variances from the four property owners of all the parcels, which adjoin the Lanava parcel, the left, the right, the rear and the parcel across the street. From my fourteen years experience as a Member of the City Newburgh Zoning Board of Appeals I know that the threshold that you apply to area variances is practical difficulty. I believe that the facts of this situation before you represent the strongest argument for practical difficulty that you can imagine. I respectfully urge that you grant the requested area variances. Thank you.  

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board?  Any questions or comments from the public?     

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:31 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MAY 27, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 9:59 PM) 



FRANK & LUCINDA LANAVA, JR. 
107 HEATHER CIRCLE, NBGH







(115-2-12) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for one and the combined side yards setbacks and the maximum lot surface coverage to keep prior built rear and side decks on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: The application of Frank and Lucinda Lanava seeking area variances for one and the combined side yards setbacks and the maximum lot surface coverage to keep prior built rear and side deck on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: I think we had letters from four of the neighbors that approved what they were doing and that's a good site…sign.

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion we approve the application.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ. 

ABSENT: RUTH EATON                                (Time Noted – 10:00 PM)
ZBA MEETING – MAY 27, 2010             (Time Noted – 7:32 PM) 



MICHAEL MANZI III


19 FIFTH AVENUE, NBGH







(71-2-8.2) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the side yard setback to build an attached garage the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Michael Manzi III.                

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out thirty-five registered letters, twenty-five were returned. All the mailings and publications are in order.

Mr. Manzi: Good evening, my name is Michael Manzi, I'm applying for an area variance for side yard setback for a two-car detached…I'm sorry, attached garage.

Ms. Drake: I see back in 2004 you applied for a variance for the same garage and now that one was denied and now you're coming back with a little bit bigger garage?

Mr. Manzi: It's actually…its step…its not going to be wider, it's going to be more…its going to be longer which will allow for more storage. 

Mr. Donovan: What's different now than back then?

Mr. Manzi: Nothing. Just the size of the garage, that's it. Like I say it’s a deeper garage. Originally it was going to be 24 ft. wide and 26 ft. deep now it's going to be 32 ft. deep.

Mr. Donovan: All right, just so you know the Law is pretty clear, if the Boards issued a prior determination and in fact, I'd have to…I have the Code in front of me in terms of a rehearing but this is essentially the same application as before and this is in more of the nature of the application for a rehearing since it’s the same relief. It’s the same distance to the side yard. So if we don't have a unanimous resolution to reopen the Hearing then there really is no…there's nothing that you can do, A and B, unless there's a reason, substantial reason to vary your earlier decision. You are bound to follow your prior precedent in this matter. I mean, you just, there's nothing different?

Mr. Manzi: No, and I wasn't told that I couldn't so before I went ahead and sent all of the notices and paid the…

Mr. Donovan: Well its not that you can't, its that the Board kind of has its hands tied if there's nothing different than six years ago…

Mr. Manzi: I mean, it’s a different size garage. It is different.

Mr. Donovan: But…

Mr. Manzi: I mean what a…

Mr. Donovan: It's bigger, yeah. But the distance for the side yard is not any different.

Mr. Manzi: No.

Ms. Drake: Right, it was four foot then and its four foot now so that hasn't changed. You haven't increased that distance by to ten feet or something else?  

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, Mr. Canfield? 

Mr. Canfield: Jerry Canfield, Town of Newburgh, Mike (Dave Donovan) you said something that raised a question. Its always been the Building Departments understanding that if an applicant changes anything on the application we cannot deny them to come back before the Board…

Mr. Donovan: Well in terms of before this Board is not…you're right, I mean, it's not your call. It's ultimately our call. If the Board wants to say, O.K., its slightly different in that the garage is deeper, then you know, maybe you have a…its essentially, not dramatically deeper but if you wanted to entertain the application then I'll just go to the next step in the analysis which is unless there's change of circumstances you don't have a lot of alternatives or unless you overlooked something the first time. You know, there's new evidence that comes to light, you know you have an obligation to follow your prior precedent and that's not a call for the Building Department to make. To be clear, you know, in this situation if it’s a different application you process it through and then it’s a call for this Board to make.

Mr. Hughes: If I may, there maybe some confusion and the Building Department has no way of knowing if the guy comes in with an application and they don't recognize it but from where I sit, the side yard is the same, the setback is the same, everything is the same except the length of the garage so you really haven't changed anything for your request of variance. You may have added two feet or six feet to the garage but everything else is the same. And a lot of the people that are on the Board now weren't. I think I remember this where you had forty some feet on one side of the house but you said that there were rocks and it was difficult building.

Mr. Manzi: Yeah, when I reevaluated, when you go back and look at it my driveway would probably double in size. I'd end up having to put the driveway right over top of the sewer line and the lay of the land is totally different. It's flat on the one side where it’s a hill on the other.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. I remember the discussion about this project. It was just way too tight to the neighbors. So I don't know, to reopen it, I agree I think you'd have to have a unanimous decision to reopen it and you'd have to go through that process is that not true, Mr. Donovan? 

Mr. Donovan: Well I guess that what's been brought up is now the garage is 24 by…

Mr. Hughes: 36 or 32.

Chairperson Cardone: 32. 

Mr. Donovan: 32, it was 24 x 26

Chairperson Cardone: 24 x 26.

Mr. Donovan: So, if you want to take the position you're going to open it up, you know, I wouldn't quarrel with that. You know, you would have an issue if want to change your decision though. I mean the fellow is here tonight. You could hear from the public I suppose. 

Mr. Hughes: So my question is, is it the variances descriptions that need to be altered or the size of the building? Which one governs whether it has to be reopened or…?

Mr. Donovan: Well you try to use a little common sense and rule of reason to a degree. We have a…even though the side yard variance which I think would cause you real problems if you try to change your mind but in terms of having a larger garage that may give you a trigger to reopen the Hearing. 

Mr. Hughes: If you read the minutes of what went on the last time.

Mr. Donovan: Well I'm telling you you are probably are bound to follow your prior decision but that doesn't prohibit you from opening the hearing given that the dimensions of the garage are now slightly different.

Mr. Hughes: Bigger.

Mr. Donovan: Bigger, correct.

Chairperson Cardone: Is there anyone from the public who would like to comment on this application? Yes, could you please use the microphone? State your name and address.

Mr. Wolf: Yes, my name is Ira Wolf, Town of Newburgh I'm the neighbor on the side in question.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, could you get a little closer to the microphone or take it off?

Mr. Wolf: Sure, my name is Ira Wolf, Town of Newburgh. So the issue of six years ago remains the same issue and I would be open to working with the Manzis to get this approved if they were open to addressing my concern, which remains one of liability against the side of that property. 

Chairperson Cardone: And they would be four feet from your property line, correct?

Mr. Wolf: Right, on that side of the property is woods right against the property. My concern all along has been right now their house is fairly far from that property line. If they build a garage it puts them right against the woods, which makes me liable for damage to that.   

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. did you have anything else?

Mr. Wolf: No.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Yes, someone else would like to speak. 

Inaudible audience member.

Chairperson Cardone: Just talk into the microphone and give your name and address.

Mr. Kuhn: My name is Danny Kuhn. I live in the Town of Newburgh. I was here for another reason. But my question for you is due to insurance purposes he's saying? I own a tree company, I own a landscape tree company and he's saying he doesn't want any liability but once you reach air there is no liability. It's a homeowner situation that doesn't allow there. If a tree falls over a property line the person whose property it falls on is liable not the property that it came from. He's asking for the release of liability. There is no liability. I'm just speaking on Mike's behalf. I just, there was a question and that's how legally the insurance company would state it. That's what I just wanted to put that out there.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. thank you. 

Mr. Galli: My name is Frank Galli, Town of Newburgh. The last time he was before the Board and I think it was denied because of a neighbor was complaining about the trees and he was too close to the property line and stuff like that which hasn't changed at all but if you actually, you know I know yous all drive around and look at the property, if you're actually standing in front of the house and you're looking to the right where he wants to put the garage when its up next to the woods at this time of the year you can barely see the house. And I think the neighbors concern was the trees. A…if you look around the neighborhood a lot of houses are up kept and there's a few houses that are not up kept. I think with the addition of the garage and I know they keep their property pretty well, I think it's an asset to the neighborhood if he was able to get the variance for the garage. Thank you.   

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Do we have any other questions from the Board or comments from the public? 
Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

(Time Noted – 7:38 PM)

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MAY 27, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 10:00 PM) 



MICHAEL MANZI III


19 FIFTH AVENUE, NBGH







(71-2-8.2) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the side yard setback to build an attached garage the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Michael Manzi III seeking an area variance for the side yard setback to build an attached garage the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. And for the record the report from the County was for Local Determination. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I would say being the application has not changed from what was previously denied several, back several years ago in 2004 that we would make a motion to deny this application, being there's no change, its still a 4-foot side yard and there is no change.

Chairperson Cardone: We have a motion to deny this application do we have a second?

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: No

                                  James Manley: No

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion for denial is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ. 

ABSENT: RUTH EATON

 (Time Noted – 10:02 PM)
ZBA MEETING – MAY 27, 2010             (Time Noted – 7:38 PM) 



JOSEPH & ARLEAN VEVE


155 LAKESIDE ROAD, NBGH







(108-5-11) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback to build a rear deck on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Joseph and Arlean Veve.                

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out seventeen registered letters, fourteen were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Mr. Veve: I'm Joe Veve and I live at 155 Lakeside Road and I'm looking to put…there's an existing deck on the back of my house that's kind of old and needs to be replaced and according to the new law I need a side setback. We're just replacing a deck that's already there but one that's just a little longer and a little wider.

Ms. Drake: But you're not going any closer than the twenty feet that the existing deck is to the side yard?

Mr. Veve: That's correct. 

Mr. McKelvey: It's just going to be an open deck like you have now.

Mr. Veve: Yes, it's an open deck like I have now.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? 

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion…

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Canfield?

Mr. Canfield: Just one…a…Jerry Canfield, Town of Newburgh, one thing for the Board's attention, to bring to your attention is the property was originally an R-3 and it was one of the properties that was rezoned to the R-1 which changed the side yard setback requirement and they and like you Brenda, I think that's what your question was.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we close the Hearing.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 7:46 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MAY 27, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 10:02 PM) 



JOSEPH & ARLEAN VEVE


155 LAKESIDE ROAD, NBGH







(108-5-11) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback to build a rear deck on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Joseph and Arlean Veve seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the side yard setback to build a rear deck on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: I think its another case where they switched from R-3 to R-1. I don't think it's going to be any problem. It's going on the same corner. It will have the same side yard setback.

Mr. Maher: I'll make a motion to approve.   

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ. 

ABSENT: RUTH EATON

 (Time Noted – 10:03 PM)
ZBA MEETING – MAY 27, 2010             (Time Noted – 7:46 PM) 



LAURIE CONSTANZO


78 HOLMES ROAD, NBGH







(20-4-2.2) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances as follows: (1) to allow more than (1) one dwelling unit on one lot; (2) to permit an accessory structure to have habitable living space in contradiction to the variance granted by the Zoning Board in 1987; (3) to allow an accessory apartment to have more than the maximum square footage allowed; (4) lot area, lot width and side yard setback to permit two residential uses on one lot (2-Family).  

Chairperson Cardone: The next applicant Laurie Constanzo.                

Ms. Gennarelli: This applicant sent out eight registered letters, eight were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Ms. Constanzo: Hi, I'm Laurie Constanzo and this is my husband Joseph. We live at 78 Holmes Road.

Ms. Gennarelli: You have to get closer to the microphone. Thank you.

Ms. Constanzo: We are here in regards to…

Mr. Constanzo: An apartment above our garage, existing garage. 

Mr. Hughes: Were you people before this Board or was it the prior owners?

Mr. Constanzo: I have no idea.

Mr. Hughes: How long have you been in this building? 

Mr. Constanzo: Three years. 

Mr. Hughes: So when you moved in it was all the way it is now?

Mr. Constanzo: That's correct.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry, we have stuff here that says it goes back to '87 with conditions…

Ms. Gennarelli: I'm sorry Ron, its not picking up, can you pull that mic in a little closer? You just have to get it closer to your mouth or... Sorry.

Mr. Hughes: I can hear it.

Ms. Gennarelli: You can hear it; its not going on the tape. 

Mr. Hughes: I can hear it going in to there. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Now it's going in. Thank you. 

Mr. Hughes: Jerry. 

Mr. Canfield: Just for the Board's benefit to give a little history. All of this work, as the applicant has testified was done prior to their purchasing the property. The issue at hand is the, quite frankly, they bought a (inaudible) not…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, Jerry, I'm sorry with the air conditioner it's not picking up. Can you get a little bit closer?

Mr. Canfield: Can you turn that off Bet? I want to be able to hear clearly what the applicant says.

Ms. Gennarelli: Sure. 

(Inaudible)

Mr. Canfield: …there was a garage constructed in the 80's. The previous owner came before the Board at that time because of the distance between the property line and the size of the garage and the height. The previous decision and resolution rendered by the Board at that time specifically had said that the garage was to be for storage only although the plans presented did display an upstairs; the Board specifically said in the decision and resolution that it was not to be utilized for occupancy. At some point in time from 1980's, 90's when the garage was constructed to the point in time that the Constanzos purchased it an apartment was put in. The Code Compliance Department received a complaint with respect to a deck being constructed or had been constructed on the side of the garage and an apartment being there, that's what actually started the ball rolling. Code Compliance Department did make an investigation and did find that there was a deck put on the side of the garage with no Permit and yes in fact there was an apartment there. That was brought to the current owner's attention who have retained an attorney to work with the Code Compliance Department to somewhat resolve these issues. This becomes a complex application because if you recollect the actual requirements of the accessory apartment section of the Code there is a limit to the size of the apartment. There's many ways to view this application and I bring that to your attention because it eventually needs to be said because you will need to make those determinations to make a decision on this application. The apartment that's there is much larger, I shouldn't say much larger, it is larger than what's allowed as an accessory apartment. 

Mr. Hughes: But with an approval. This wasn't ever approved.

Mr. Canfield: That's correct. This is the complexity of the application.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. That's what I'm reading here. There's paper like that.

Mr. Canfield: Because of the size of the apartment that lends itself to the application or actually to the applicants an option whether it should be viewed as a potential two-family which if that's the route they chose to go their lot size doesn't conform. If you are familiar with the requirements for a two-family the lot (inaudible) is much greater. A…if its going to be an accessory apartment then part of what should be requested from this Board is a variance to the size of the allowable size of the apartment. So I think you have two issues before you; a) there is an apartment there that the previous Board specifically said did not belong there and that's why I felt that this application should come back before the Board and then b) the size of the apartment. Again, I…I must remind the Board it's to no fault of to the current owners they purchased it this way. A…I don't know exact records. I don't have an exact timeline of how long that apartments been there but there has been proof presented that it was there when they purchased it.

Mr. Hughes: You're on a well?

Mr. Constanzo: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: There's no sewer there on Holmes?

Mr. Canfield: Well and septic, yes.

Mr. Hughes: There is…there is sewer on Holmes?

Mr. Canfield: They are on well and septic. There is no Municipal services there.

Mr. Hughes: And how many people does this complex serve?

Mr. Constanzo: Two. It has…the property two septics on the property. This particular dwelling that Mr. Canfield is describing to you has its own septic. 

Mr. Hughes: Do you have anything on file with that, Jerry? Or is it just…? Nothing on file?

Mr. Canfield: Unfortunately, no. 

Mr. Hughes: So you don't know what size the tank is or…

Mr. Canfield: I have no idea what…

Mr. Constanzo: I have an engineer's certification, a New York State engineer for the septic which I've provided to the Building Department. I have the original copy with me. I would like to clarify a couple of things that Mr. Canfield was clarifying to you. The allowable usage for accessory apartments square footage is 700 sq. ft. The actual size of the apartment and this is wall to wall is 700 sq. ft. It measures 749 sq. ft., 49, 742, 749, 49 is the square footage of the interior stairwell and landing. 700 sq. ft. is the actual area of the apartment interior. The deck was reconstructed. I don't know how it got a C.O. for us to buy it. The inspector actually who I hired to inspect it said the deck should be replaced but that was, you know, tossed around with the previous owner and they were willing to do nothing about it so I accepted it and rebuilt it. It looks new because it is new practically but its put in the same footprint and then I put a walkway to that building. 

Mr. Hughes: And, how do you serve the accessory apartment with the water? Is the electric on all one meter? Is…

Mr. Constanzo: No, separate meter for that.

Mr. Hughes: Separate meters and all that?

Mr. Constanzo: Separate meter.

Mr. Hughes: And what about the water? How is that served to this?

Mr. Constanzo: It's…it's that is split. That services both. The well is a pretty substantial.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry, any problems with that?

Mr. Canfield: You can serve two dwellings with one well providing that the…there is adequate water pressure.

Mr. Hughes: But now back to…rewind the tape back to the original thing, there was never supposed to be anybody living there to begin with according to the terms of the garage.

Mr. Canfield: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. 

Mr. Manley: When you were purchasing the home how was the home being sold to you by the realtor? 

Mr. Constanzo: A…the description I actually have the actual for-sale description as a listing on the MLS.

Mr. Manley: Would you be able to read that into the record for us, please?

Mr. Constanzo: Absolutely. Sure. Basically it makes the determinations of finished 800 sq. ft. or something finished above garage. 

Ms. Constanzo: Here it is.

Mr. Constanzo: Custom built home on 1.5 acres, which I later determined I only have one acre, formal living room, oh, let me skip around, two-car garage, separate building has three-car garage and 800 sq. ft. finished second level, hardwood floors. And it also says I have a pool but the Town says I don't but I do. 

Mr. Manley: Were there any representations made to you by the real estate agent or the homeowner that this was a income producing apartment?

Mr. Constanzo: No. 

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Were you lead to believe that this was all approved and O.K?

Mr. Constanzo: Yeah. There's also talk within the Town that the 24 x 36 addition on the back of this garage is non-existent. 

Mr. Hughes: There's a lot of mysteries in the Town.

Mr. Donovan: Let's, if I can, maybe we'll take a little bit of a different approach at this. We have the condition of the prior variance saying that it can't be used as living space. But this is in the A/R zoning district?

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: Right, which allows accessory apartments.

Mr. Hughes: Under the new Code 40,000 sq. ft. 

Mr. Donovan: So, it would seem to me that if I was steering this bus in the beginning the fact that either conditions have changed and that the zoning has changed or that was an improper condition to begin with...if you could have an accessory apartment. So if we go forward from there then the analysis is there needs to be…there was never an application for an accessory apartment. So we need to have an application for an accessory apartment and that would have to be reviewed under the criteria of 185-38, which is now a Building Department review. I'm sorry Jerry to be looking to you and putting you on the spot but do you know if that's occurred? 

Mr. Canfield: Yes, it was through the review process that it was learned how big the apartment actually was. And again, what the applicant is telling you is is accurate. The issue we have with our 700 sq. ft. rule on the accessory apartments is that it does not separate gross or net square footage. A…so what the applicant has explained to you is yes, he has 700 sq. ft. of actual net living space if you take out hallways and stairwells.

Mr. Donovan: So, leaving aside the engineering issue of the ability of the septic system whether it was properly designed, installed and can handle what's being generated on site are we then to the issue that we need a variance for the maximum square footage, the lot area, the lot width, one side yard and I guess that's it? Right? Is that fair to say that's…? I want to…I want to, if not please tell me then.

Mr. Canfield: No, again maybe I didn't explain clearly enough.

Mr. Donovan: Maybe I didn't understand enough.

Mr. Canfield: There are options here. This is like a Chinese restaurant, which you want to go. 

Ms. Drake: Wait, before you go on…before you go on Jerry, there's also a description or a schematic that shows like three different options. Maybe following that would help.

Mr. Canfield: Yes, exactly and that was...that option list was discussed with the applicant's attorney with Joe Mattina to present different ways to approach this and which would be the most logical way to come up with a solution. And…and one of those options, Dave, is if you're looking at…you look…classifying it as a two family then you get into the lot area doesn't comply, the lot width and that type of thing. If you look at it just the size of the accessory apartment, which is permitted, then you're looking at a variance again for the size, which in all honesty would be my recommendation to this Board. It would be the less cumbersome way for everyone to handle this.     

Mr. Donovan: What's more accurate about relative to what's on the ground? Isn't that that it's an accessory apartment in this accessory structure not a classic two-family?

Mr. Canfield: That's correct. It's much simpler to go that route. And I also must say that I think our Zoning Code with respect to net and gross square footage needs to be examined by the Town Board a…and I would also like to recommend that perhaps the Zoning Board may sent some communication to the Town Board to ask them to reexamine that. I would support that and also send some communication because we see this commonly with this 700 sq. ft. net versus gross. Our Code does not specify so… So in any event, going back to the beginning, coming back to the Board because the Board previously had said no occupancy over the garage and then b) a variance for the size of the apartment, if the applicants are agreeable to that.

Mr. Constanzo: Absolutely. 

Ms. Drake: So when it was said by this previous Board that no occupancy in the garage was that accessory apartments not allowed in that zoning or the zoning changed then and therefore now its permitted? 

Mr. Canfield: Yes, you're exactly right Brenda; back at that timeframe there were no provisions. Accessory apartments were viewed simply by and handled by the Zoning Board. Since that time the Code has been amended where they are permitted and that's were these provisions that Dave was referring to in 185-38 come out. 

Mr. Hughes: I have some other notes that are on the peripheral of this but it’s a health issue more than anything else. If you look at the chart it shows the tank of a 1250 gallon tank and it looks as though its about 40-feet away from that well that they're talking about and I know that there's at least a minimum of 100-foot setback on a flat plane, down gradient is 200-feet.

Mr. Constanzo: That's not correct.

Mr. Hughes: Do you know where that tank is or…?

Mr. Constanzo: It's 200-feet in the other direction on the other side of the pool. That's the drywell or leach field. The tank itself, which is solid, is located where you see it, leech fields and drywell are way on the other side of the property.

Mr. Hughes: But you don't have 100-feet from the tank to your well. According to this diagram it shows them right next to each other by 30 or 40 feet, which is a health concern. If the tank is leaking, it's close to your well, guess where it's going. The other part of it is you had mentioned there were two separate tanks and leach fields?

Mr. Constanzo: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Where is the other one?

Mr. Constanzo: In the front yard of the main house.

Mr. Hughes: So your…your house is served by the one in the front yard and the garage is served by the one that talking about going down around the corner there?

Mr. Constanzo: I could submit this engineer seal for the septic for the dwelling in question that you're talking about if you need it to be.

Mr. Hughes: It was just a caution to you sir; if you have septic going into your well it's not good.

Mr. Constanzo: It's a solid tank, there's an alarm on it, if it leaks.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have an aerobic system?

Mr. Constanzo: Yes, I believe so.  

Mr. Hughes: Is there Town water on Holmes Road, Jerry, in that part?

Mr. Canfield: There is a twenty inch main that comes from the adequate tap however it's not usable for potable water. There are no one tied into it. 

Mr. Hughes: High pressure?

Mr. Canfield: Correct. No, high volume not high pressure. 

Mr. Hughes: It's not high pressure? But could be tapped into though? Then I have another thing here. You're supposed to have 100,000 sq. ft. for two dwellings on one parcel and you're saying you have just an acre that's 40,000 sq. ft. and I didn't see that anywhere. I don't want you to have to come back here again for it being omitted. Anybody have anything on that? You're supposed to have 100,000 sq. ft. with two dwellings. 

Chairperson Cardone: That would be only if its considered a two-family.

Mr. Donovan: Two-family, if it's just the accessory apartment we wouldn't need…

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: …he would conform if it’s the accessory apartment other than potential outstanding Building Code issues the only issue is 49 sq. ft. over the allowable maximum.

Mr. Hughes: I just want to make sure we're not missing anything here. Thank you for answering my questions everyone.

Mr. Constanzo: You're welcome. 

Mr. Maher: Jerry, one question, in the original May 4, 1987 Zoning Board, the approval is for a 26 x 36 garage and its 46 x 36.  

Mr. Hughes: And another building behind it.

Mr. Maher: So, I guess my question was, was it done all at one time at that size or was it done after the fact?  

Mr. Canfield: I can't honestly answer that Mike, back in the 80's I wasn't in the Building Department so I don't know at that time how they handled it. I guess you're right it does appear to be bigger than the original Permit was for, which was done back at that time in the 80's or the early 90's.

Chairperson Cardone: Are there any questions or comments from the public? Anything else from the Board?     

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a second? 

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: We have a motion. Do we have a second?

Mr. Manley: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 8:06 PM)

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MAY 27, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 10:03 PM) 



LAURIE CONSTANZO


78 HOLMES ROAD, NBGH







(20-4-2.2) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances as follows: (1) to allow more than (1) one dwelling unit on one lot; (2) to permit an accessory structure to have habitable living space in contradiction to the variance granted by the Zoning Board in 1987; (3) to allow an accessory apartment to have more than the maximum square footage allowed; (4) lot area, lot width and side yard setback to permit two residential uses on one lot (2-Family).  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Laurie Constanzo seeking an area variance as to allow an accessory apartment to have more than the maximum square footage allowed. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. 

Mr. Manley: I think one of the big changes with this is that the Code since 1987 when this originally came before the Board has changed and now that is something that's allowable. I think what the Board really has to look at is, you know, whether or not the 49 sq. ft. is excessive or not excessive and should consider granting based on that as an accessory apartment.

Mr. Hughes: There was a lot of unusual things about this and boy you guys have some sense of humor, huh? I'll move it for approval but you have to pay attention to all that stuff we discussed and really check out your well separations and all that other stuff. I'll move it.

Ms. Drake: Can we a condition that they insure that the meet all the other Building Code requirements for everything that's pertained to accessory use with the septic and so forth? And I'll second that if that's O.K. with that amendment.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, sure, amend that to read as such.  

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ. 

ABSENT: RUTH EATON

 (Time Noted – 10:04 PM)
ZBA MEETING – MAY 27, 2010             (Time Noted – 8:06 PM) 

NOWAB HOTELS CORPORATION
RTE 17K/WEST OF RTE 300, NBGH







(95-1-16 & 17) IB/A ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the side yard setback and for signage for a subdivision of the lot and to build a hotel.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Nowab Hotels Corporation.

Mr. Cordisco: Good evening everyone. 

Chairperson Cardone: Just state your name for the record.

Mr. Cordisco: I'm Dominick Cordisco from Drake, Loeb on behalf of Nowab Hotels Corp. We were…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me; you will have to get closer (to the mic).

Mr. Cordisco: I have to get closer. I'm afraid you probably will have to keep reminding me of that. It seems that I need remedial education on this. I apologize. We were here last month and we continued the Public Hearing so that the a…we could have an opportunity to revise the plans. We resubmitted revised plans and we also included the side yard set plan, which was inadvertently left off, from our original submission. And without any further ado I would like to turn it over to Mr. Coppola so he can go over the changes to the signage plans and then we can address the side yard setback plan. So I'm going to hand the microphone to him. 

Mr. Coppola: Thank you Dominick. Real briefly I'll go over what's been revised since last month. We have three, three basic items here; the signage on Sign 1 shows the signage plan on the five-acre Holiday Inn parcel. Sign 2 shows the signage, the comprehensive signage plan on the Quality Inn parcel and then we have some existing corporate signage that we'd like to go over too. So, on the five-acre Holiday Inn parcel all of the existing calculations from last month were basically the same. So there's no change to that. I guess what we are proposing there is the total signage area is a…442 that basically is a…442 that's what being proposed that's includes what's new and what's being removed. We are only allowed 29 sq. ft., again because we have this tiny little frontage here so that leaves us a variance request for this parcel of 413 sq. ft. and then again I can go over all those signs again but it’s the same as we presented last month. On the Sign 2 sheet, the comprehensive signage plan for the Quality Inn, the big change that we made was deducting that existing billboard so there is the existing billboard that faces the Thruway, that's coming down. So our total proposed signage here is now 1022. That includes the subtraction of the 1184 sq. ft. billboard sign. Our proposed is 1022 based on the frontage on 17K we are allowed 210 and that leaves us a variance request of 811. So that the existing pylon sign on 17K which is going to remain, our new business sign for Holiday Inn and then a…a relocation of the other sign. So, so that's what's been changed and what we…what the Board also asked us to look at was more…a…give some more background on what the corporate Holiday Inn signage requires and what they looked at and we've also submitted actually a whole range of…a broader range of signage that we had originally looked at with the corporate signage people at Holiday Inn. And they show amongst other things, giant pylon signs, which I think were originally considered for this site and substantial monument signs, which we are not proposing, and we have shown basically that of the two smaller signs here which are actually part of our proposed signage plan. So, this kind of gives you an overview of what…what they looked for and the small signs are basically what they feel…what we feel in discussions with them are appropriate for this site in Newburgh. It'll just give you some sense of what we talked about with them. I think that's all…all I have to say. Here's Justin, from Maser engineers. 

Mr. Dates: Good evening, my name is Justin Dates with Maser Consulting, the project engineers. I just want to present the side yard setback variance that we're requesting. You have a copy of our layout and dimension plan basically the site is going to be subdivided into two commercial lots. The orange line here, which I've sketched on, shows the division between the two lots. The proposed Lot #1 will house the existing hotel facility and then proposed Lot #2 will be for the Holiday Inn. The side yard variance that we're looking for is right in this area. The required side yard for the IB zone here is 50-feet, we have 42.3 so we looking for a variance of 7.7 ft roughly. And its basically just clips the corner of the existing hotel building in that area.  

Ms. Drake: You meet the side yard everywhere else for both of the buildings, everywhere else but that one spot?

Mr. Dates: Correct. All the other bulk requirements for each lot are met. This is the only exception.

Ms. Drake: O.K. Your new signage plan includes all the existing signs that are there, putting it all into one package?

Mr. Cordisco: Correct.

Ms. Drake: There's no other variances for any other signs previously?

Mr. Cordisco: Correct. We wanted to make it clear, you know, in light of the conversation last time that we're calculating with the existing signage and the new signage and the total request rather than just what's being proposed.

Ms. Drake: O.K. I just wanted to make that clear. 

Mr. Cordisco: Yes. And we did reduce the overall request by over 1100 sq. ft. by the removal of the billboard. 

Mr. Manley: I still have a little concern with respect to the signage in that you're requesting 442 sq. ft. of signage for the Holiday Inn property, am I correct? 

Mr. Coppola: Yes, that's the new, the new net. That's correct.

Mr. Manley: For the Holiday Inn?

Mr. Coppola: For the five-acre Holiday Inn property.

Mr. Manley: And the other property you're requesting 1022 which is double that of the Holiday Inn for the Quality Inn. Now I understand that you did get rid of that one large billboard…

Mr. Cordisco: I think AJ could walk you through that but that's largely existing signage. The only new signage that's proposed for the Quality Inn lot would be the 25-ft., sq. ft. Holiday Inn sign. This small one down here, the business sign there. That's the only new signage that would be on that lot.

Mr. Coppola: That existing pylon sign on 17K is 940 sq. ft. so that's, you know, 80 or 90% of our total. 

Mr. Manley: Now I noticed that the one sign, the large sign that says Quality Inn and then Doolittle's Restaurant under it, there is an area that says future signage and existing marquees sign to remain. Is that future signage calculated in your calculation, or no?   

Mr. Coppola: Yeah, cause if you notice the…it's a…400…470 sq. ft. each side. That includes basically the top rectangle and these three rectangles here, for each side times two. 

Ms. Drake: You're saying there's three signs below that? They're allowed three spots like where the Doolittle's sign is? 

Mr. Coppola: Correct. 

Ms. Drake: Why would you need a total of three there? What other…why could there be…there's the restaurant and the hotel? What else?

Mr. Cordisco: He's showing what's existing there right now and there's three slots there for signage. 

Ms. Drake: But you could reduce the variance requested by eliminating some of those spots.

Mr. Cordisco: We could. We could. We didn't want to, you know, suggest that we're not counting it because its available slots right now because physically they're on that sign. And to reiterate though as well, the existing right now the Doolittle's Restaurant sign is a separate sign that we're proposing to move on to...on to that pylon sign. So we are eliminating one other freestanding sign that's currently there now.  

Mr. Manley: Is that about 10 x 6, each of those two areas? I don’t see the dimensions on it. 

Mr. Coppola: Yes. 10-feet wide.

Mr. Manley: By about how many feet high?

Mr. Coppola: No, I think that's not scaled there but I think that's correct about 5 or 6 feet high.

Mr. Manley: So we'd be looking at 120 sq. ft. for each. So you can eliminate 240 sq. ft. from your signage calculation if you were to eliminate those as signs and just use them for the purposes of the sign height not putting any advertising on it. Would that be correct?

Mr. Coppola: Yeah, I think maybe we'll get the owner. Asif, I think part of the interest was this existing facility that's there, the Quality Inn the restaurant facility, wasn't there a talk of if you got if there was an opportunity to put another business inside that building?

Mr. Javid: Yes (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. I'm sorry; you're going to have to use the microphone we're recording. Thank you. 

Mr. Javid: My name is Asif Javid I was here last time. I am the owner of the property. The existing building has 120-room Quality Inn and the restaurant. Once we get the Holiday Inn approved the restaurant building is separate. It does not connect to the building with the existing hotel business, I mean building. So what we have proposed to the Planning Board to that once we get this project up from the ground that restaurant will be closed and we will convert it to some sort of office space or possibly a retail business because we can't compete with ourselves right next door to each other. So that's…that's going to go away.

Mr. McKelvey: Are they going to need signage if you put an office there? 

Ms. Drake: Which is why they want to leave those three slots on that sign.

Mr. Cordisco: That's correct.

Mr. McKelvey: Oh, O.K. 

Mr. Cordisco: And this is the sign that we're talking about. I'll put this up here so you can see it. This is the existing Quality Inn pylon sign. This is the separate Doolittle sign that we're talking about removing and moving over here but you can see that there's additional space here that we calculated as part of our request to reserve for future signage.

Ms. Drake: Where would the sign for the restaurant at the Holiday Inn go? If there's going to be a restaurant as part of the Holiday Inn will that need its own sign and where would that go? 

Mr. Coppola: No, I mean, that you wouldn't…there wouldn't be a separate sign for that that the public sees.

Ms. Drake: So you wouldn't have a sign similar to Doolittle's for the Holiday Inn restaurant so we're not going to see you back here again for that sign later?

Mr. Coppola: That's correct.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Mr. Manley: Now, let's just say in the event that you decide to put an office in there where the restaurant is and you need a sign out there would that not require you to have to go back before the Planning Board? 

Mr. Coppola: A…it could…it could, I mean a change use for that space.

Mr. Cordisco: Certainly in effect we would need new site plan approval. We would need new site plan approval.

Mr. Manley: Correct. So wouldn't that be…? I mean, if that were to happen you're going to have to go the Planning Board anyway I would think that at that point based on what you're putting in the Zoning Board then could have the opportunity to take another bite at the apple and say we'll give you this much space for signage. So my thought is remove it out of the calculation now then this way in the future…you may not in the future put…it may stay a hotel and not…you may put additional rooms in there. At that point, you really wouldn't have to do anything, you know, with the signage. 

Mr. Cordisco: The answer is yes; we can have two bites at the apple.

Mr. Manley: O.K. Only because we want to give you the variance for what you need and not really not any more than what you need…

Mr. Cordisco: Sure, I understand.

Mr. Manley: …with regard to relief, I mean, I would feel comfortable giving you the relief you need but not any more than that. I mean that would be fair.

Mr. Cordisco: We understand and we certainly know that we need to come back for site plan approval for any changes in regards to that.

Mr. Hughes: I have some questions about the imaginary line you drew between the two complexes and what you're going to do about snow plowing and maintenance and why if you have in mind to shift to a different use why not give yourself a comfortable room to operate instead of trying to shove ten pounds of stuff in a five pound bag? You can move that building over. You can move parking over. You don't have to chintz on the 50-feet that you're required for the sake of 8-feet. What are you going to plow it with? What are you going to maintain it with? It all adds up into a lemon by not changing that line.

Mr. Cordisco: There will be, you know, parking and maintenance easements that would be required to…

Mr. Hughes: I'm not concerned about the legal part of it. I'm talking about the physical maintenance of it. If you draw that line over there and you've only got a certain amount of footage in there how are you going to get snow equipment and stuff like that? Jerry? The overseeing fire agency what do they say about something like this? To me that's too tight.

Mr. Canfield: Well first thing, Ron, that…that imaginary line…a…is a real thing. This is actually a proposed subdivision. O.K.? If the subdivision was approved by the Planning Board now we're looking at two separate tax parcels…

Mr. Hughes: What about the parking?

Mr. Canfield: …so that line eventually will become real that brings a question, perhaps to Dave, we're looking at this application looking at the total signage as a whole. In actuality it will become two lots. So in terms of should a variance be granted shouldn't the numbers coincide with the correct lot?

Mr. Cordisco: We did show that.

Mr. Donovan: Yeah I think that's…

Mr. Canfield: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: …that's why we have the issue of, I forget what lot number it is, that you only have the 29-feet of frontage which…

Mr. Canfield: Right.

Mr. Donovan: …which obviously we'll use that as our barometer for permitted signage requires the variance with regard to that lot.

Mr. Cordisco: We've shown it as a separate calculation for each lot.

Mr. Donovan: Right. 

Mr. Canfield: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: Right.

Mr. Canfield: The other point that I'd like to make is that at the last time the applicant was before the Board the question was brought up how did they get so much signage without coming before this Board? The answer to that question is, and I was just discussing it with Anthony and Justin and Dominic, they were granted credit for frontage on the Thruway. There's an additional 900 to 1000 feet back here and the reason being is that in every case that a commercial occupancy borders, whether it be a State road or a what have you, our Zoning Code does not the signage code 185-14 does not explicitly say you must have access to that road. It just says street frontage so in other cases that has been given credit for the additional linear footage, which of course, would boost in this case the allowable signage four to five hundred square feet just for information. Let me just finish before I forget Dave. Ron, to your question I have reviewed this with respect to Fire Code, the 26-foot driving lane in the rear of the building does meet or exceed the Fire Code. 

Mr. Hughes: All right. So now have another question on top of that. If you're planning on making this another building is it going to come down or is it going to be a retrofit or in either event you're going to have a different calculation for your parking per square footage for office spaces adverse to what you have for a hotel or a motel whatever you'd like to call it. Has that been calculated or approached in this conversation with the Planning Board?   

Mr. Cordisco: No.

Mr. Hughes: I think I'd like to have a little bit more information about all that as well.

Mr. Canfield: That's beyond my pay grade.

Mr. Cordisco: I can answer the question. It hasn't yet because the plans don't exist at this time because there's no end user.

Mr. Hughes: Retrofit or demolition and rebuild?

Mr. Cordisco: I believe it will be a retrofit but we would have to show that whatever use is going to be taking up that space would meet the parking requirements and all the other requirements for that lot otherwise we would be back here with the condition to perhaps looking for more signage.  

Ms. Drake: Would you object to a condition that should that building be demolished that it meet all the setback requirements for the zoning and therefore not need that variance for that side yard that you're asking for now?

Mr. Cordisco: It's difficult to say only because there are no existing plans so I don't know what a future user would want to use that site for so we would be placing a restriction on their ability to come before this Board to make an application. You could always turn it down. But at this point I would have to say no only because I think it’s a restriction where we really don't know what the possibilities are. 

Mr. Donovan: Can I just go back to the issue of the a…giving credit for the Thruway? Is that taken into consideration in your calculations?

Mr. Cordisco: We did not calculate that, no.

Mr. Coppola: No.

Mr. Cordisco: It reduces our overall variance request.

Ms. Drake: For one lot. The lot that has…

Mr. Donovan: Correct. I guess that's the…reduce to what degree, or eliminate?

(Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: You didn't include it at all?

Mr. Coppola: We didn't know that we could.

Mr. Hughes: I don't think that you can under current. We just received something about having access.

Mr. Coppola: I mean, this is just going by a visual. This is one third and that's probably two thirds so this is two hundred and…this gives me two hundred and ten square footage so…times three would be six ten we'd probably still be somewhat under. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Cordisco: We would still need a variance. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Cordisco: But it would be lessened if you include that as a credit.

Mr. McKelvey: Dave do we have to wait for them to make calculations for Thruway?

Mr. Donovan: Well, I mean you have the…if you wanted to do that you could. If you wanted to analyze the application in the way its presented which is exclusive of the New York State Thruway and perhaps that may be a direction that we're headed into because we all got a copy of correspondence from Mark Taylor indicating that maybe in a different context but that the a, you know, a roadway to which you do not access I think he says should not be taken into consideration in any type of review that we make so…

Mr. Cordisco: Was that in connection with this application?

Mr. Donovan: No, it was not.

Mr. McKelvey: No. 

Mr. Hughes: Completely generic.

Mr. McKelvey: I just wanted some clarification on that.   

Mr. Donovan: Well let me ask the question to the applicant, I mean, I don't know that this Board's…it sounds like Jerry in the past it may have been an ad hoc determination that while you have this frontage here and maybe its advertising so its different than an access you don't need access. I don't know what reason its done but I don't know that this Board has ever…ever tackled that issue and made a determination so...

Mr. Canfield: Just one thing Dave, the Building Department's position has always been the verbiage does not say accessibility. That words are not there. It just says street frontage. I think it would be very beneficial and helpful to the Board or excuse me, the Building Department if this Board did render a decision and…and give your determination on it. Then a precedent would be set and we have something to go by. Does that sound agreeable?

Mr. Donovan: Well, then you have to ask them. I'm agreeable to anything, Jerry but it's not my call. 

Mr. Cordisco: I would agree actually with Mr. Canfield it would be helpful. You know, we've showed it as the worst-case scenario without taking credit. I appreciate that Mr. Taylor may have provided some guidance to the Board and as Town Attorney but in all honesty it's this Board that makes interpretations of the Code.

Mr. Donovan: If that's the case then I think it would be helpful to the Board to do an analysis to say well if the frontage along the Thruway was taken into consideration then the total signage allowed would be X square foot meaning that the variance under that scenario was Y square foot so the Board has the ability to analyze it in both contexts.

Mr. Cordisco: I can't give you an exact calculation tonight but it would reduce significantly under that scenario if you count the Thruway it would reduce the overall differential between what we're allowed and what we're asking for.

Mr. Manley: I would almost venture to say that its never been…it may have been in some cases used but I'll give you an example Stop and Shop Plaza, Newburgh Towne Center and the Newburgh Mall. I don't believe Newburgh Mall had to come before this Board way back in the 80's for a variance with regard to their signage because they only utilized the one…the 300 side. 

Ms. Drake: What about for the Marketplace? They had an exit off a ramp 84. Did they include 84?

Mr. Manley: I don't believe so.

Mr. Donovan: Well I'd have to look at the application. I don't want to…because…that was a detailed analysis and…

Mr. Manley: Right.  

Mr. Donovan: …we hired a consultant…

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: …on that as well and I think we'd revisit that. It was pretty detailed findings with regard to that application and whether 84 was taken into consideration I just don't recall.

Mr. Cordisco: It does, however, Mr. Canfield's comments do provide additional background because the question was last month as to why is there the amount of signage on the Quality Inn site that there is when you're only allowed X feet, square feet of signage so assuming that that the Thruway was taken into account that would explain a great deal for why the signage is that size. 


Mr. Manley: That creates another question. The entrance from 300, near the Denny's, is that part of the Holiday Inn/Quality Inn property? 

Mr. Cordisco: Yes, and that's correct and on the signage plan, if I may? 

Mr. Manley: You have a sign there, right? 

Mr. Cordisco: We do, but we calculated the amount of signage for the new Holiday Inn based on this limited amount of frontage that we have here so the overall calculation of 442 sq. ft. of signage is based on its taking into account that 29 sq. ft. of what's allowed based on that frontage solely on 300 and we're not seeking to take any credit for anything that's going on over at 17K or the Thruway.

Mr. Coppola: That existing Quality Inn sign is to be removed.

Mr. Hughes: So you own the road only, sir? You own the road, 29-feet down to 300 only?

Mr. Javid: Yes.

Mr. Cordisco: Yes, this is the shape of the lot it tapers down towards 300.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry, when we asked you if you had any record on file about this you found nothing about how we got to this point with the total footage?

Mr. Canfield: There's permits issued for signage. There's nothing that's been before this Board. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. We always like to know how we got to where we got now before you guys start bargaining so we know how it evolved to this and to make sure there were no restrictions set at that point.

Mr. Cordisco: And at least we got the permits.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah. 

Mr. Manley: That's a plus.

Mr. Cordisco: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: It's not customary but it’s a plus. It happens not too often.

Mr. Cordisco: They do say its better to ask forgiveness sometimes than permission.

Mr. Hughes: Well, I'll tell you a story after the meeting.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions other from the Board?  Any questions or comments from the public? 

Mr. Kelson: Good evening, my name is Todd Kelson. I'm an attorney with offices in New Windsor. I'm listening carefully to what was said tonight. Some issues the applicant has attempted to address and some issues the applicant has not addressed at all based on prior, last months comments from the Board. I guess the first thing we want to…I want to review is the signage issues. I'll just reiterate again and there past discussion about the amount of signage that's being requested and I just again want to reiterate to the Board one of the standards that it must consider in granting the variance is whether the variance is substantial and I put my calculator away again but a variance of 600, or for 413 sq. ft. where 29 is permitted is, I don't know, what is that 700%, 800%? It’s a very substantial variance and I think that's something that should be taken very seriously into account. The comments about the sign being…permits being granted for those signs where there's a question as to the counting of the Thruway frontage I would simply point out and I'm sure the representative for the Building Department will concur that if a permit is issued but it turns out that the basis upon which a permit is issued is incorrect the permit can be set aside. And I don't think that the Board should compound an error if in fact an error has been made. It may have been made twenty years ago or more. How old are the signs? Very old I suppose, correct? Yeah, they're quite old but that doesn't mean that the Board should compound that possible mistake in interpretation. They're asking…I also get the sense that they're possibly asking for an interpretation tonight that's one of the things that was suggested. I don't think that's part of their application. I don't believe they requested an interpretation of that provision and so I don't know that's properly before this Board and I don't know that it should be really part of this Hearing. So that's troublesome as well. With respect to site again they're proposing a subdivision in counting the spaces we discussed this last month as well. There's no guarantees are being offered that the site will remain in common ownership and if the site does not remain in common ownership does the counting of the spaces of the overall site also creates a problem. Finally nothing was discussed this evening about the traffic issues that this…that this proposal presents and I would reiterate the position that I took last month and that was that that would result in a very, very adverse change to the character of the neighborhood as well the very, very substantial sign variance that's being sought. That has not being addressed at all. I would hope that there would be some traffic studies or other evidence tonight addressing that but I don't…I guess I don't see that being offered by the applicant. Finally with respect to the side yard issue I'm not sure what their practical difficulty is. They control the entire site. They can draw the picture. They can draw this building however they wish to draw it. So I do not see that they offered any evidence that they have any sort of practical difficulty that would give rise to grounds to grant that variance at all. That's all I have now. Thank you. 

Mr. Cordisco: Actually, perhaps the Board would allow? If Mr. Kelson who identified himself as an attorney it might be helpful if he actually identified who he's representing. I believe I listened carefully both this time and last month and a we didn't hear who he speaking on behalf of.

Mr. Kelson: I'm a resident of the Town of Newburgh.

Mr. Cordisco: And you're not speaking on behalf of a client?

Mr. Kelson: I don't have to disclose whom I'm speaking on behalf of. 

Mr. Cordisco: I…I…

Mr. Kelson: I am a resident of the Town of Newburgh and I drive down 300 every day of my life and I can speak to this in any capacity that I wish.

Mr. Cordisco: I think that the Board has to consider that Mr. Kelson might be representing potential competition for this particular applicant and when I was before the Board on a prior application we had a memo that was submitted to the Board that competition is a proper issue for the Board to consider when you're considering an application that's before you. Now he has particular substantive issues, which I'm happy to go through one by one, but I think the Board should weigh that the fact that there is a potential competition issues which are driving these comments. In regards to the substantiality of the variance we're not arguing its substantial. I mean, we can't…we can't hide the numbers. The numbers are what they are. They're certainly more substantial the way we presented it with a not taking credit on the Comfort…on the Quality Inn lot for Thruway frontage. We're not arguing its not substantial but I'm sure the Board knows and the case law clearly provides that just because a variance request is substantial is not a basis for the Board to deny it. And that reason alone cannot be a basis for the decision. It's something that you have to take into consideration with all the other factors. In regards to the interpretation, we're not requesting an interpretation. We just heard tonight about the letter from Mark Taylor and so if the Board…

Chairperson Cardone: I have to speak on that.

Mr. Donovan: I misspoke. I misspoke.

Chairperson Cardone: There is not a letter from Mark Taylor. There is a letter from the Building Inspector with a quote from Mark Taylor but that's been misrepresented.

Mr. Donovan: And its not about this application but rather about whether or not a corner lot, just because you have two streets you have to have access to one of the streets. I thought perhaps it might be informative but to be clear if I said Mark Taylor wrote a letter, that's not true. 

Mr. Cordisco: That's O.K. and if he had that would have been fine as well. We're not requesting an interpretation in fact what we're showing is the worst-case scenario without taking credit for the Thruway frontage. If the Board, in your discretion, wants to apply credit for the Thruway frontage that's within your purview to do or not do as you see fit. In regards to the subdivision, Mr. Dates actually went through and identified, I believe at last month's meeting, why this building of this size fit the Holiday Inn, a full Holiday Inn not a Holiday Inn Express but a full Holiday Inn with the amenities as shown fits on this site and you meet all the other setbacks with the exception of the 7-foot setback that is actually in between the two lots. Now in regards to the subdivision I agree that there…there is not going to be…its currently one lot so it's all owned by Mr. Javid. But it will be subdivided and it will be in separate ownership in the future but in that regards that's we totally expressed last time and as part of the site plan approval would be cross easements for the maintenance of all those shared elements between those two sites. So they could be jointly responsible for it. And in regards to traffic, I believe that that issue is not before this Board, its before the Planning Board and the Planning Board will be revisiting that issue when you return. The question with regards to this Board is primarily in relation to the signage, I believe, because that's the larger of the applications. And I think what ultimately you have to decide is whether or not there is a detrimental impact to the neighborhood in regards to the signage. And I submit to you and I'm sure you're all familiar with that area that the signage that we're actually proposing for the Holiday Inn site is far smaller than any of the other existing signage for any other hotel that's on that area and as a A.J. had showed you we picked the two smallest signs that were available from Holiday Inn corporate and Holiday Inn corporate was pushing for larger signage including one sign that is 275 sq. ft. that they wanted to put up because on a pylon it would be on a pole that you could see it when you're out along the Thruway and 84. We were sensitive to the fact that we need significant and substantial variances from the Board so we didn't want to overstate our request so we were trying to be sensitive to that. That's all I have. 

Chairperson Cardone: Did you have something further? Yes. 

Mr. Kelson: If I may be permitted? I mean I'll just…I'll just reiterate a comment that I made last week. Mr. Cordisco has stated again that this Board has no ability to consider traffic issues in deciding whether to grant the variance and I would simply urge that the traffic is an environmental factor especially over there. And there's no, there is absolutely no reason that the Board cannot and should not take that into account in determining whether there will be adverse environmental impact or other impact on the neighborhood in the granting of this variance and no traffic evidence has been introduced, unless I'm mistaken, thus far at all and I think it’s a very serious issue. I had recalled last night, last month that there was some…some discussion of…of some comments from the D.O.T. that were going to be offered. I guess they were not offered. But I'm sure the Board would be interested in seeing whether there were traffic concerns based upon the alignment of that driveway, the traffic light that is located at that intersection and how it be…and the impact of the granting of this variances on the traffic of that section of Route 300. The traffic there is already quite serious. The road is overburdened as it sits and to the extent that this, the approval of this application will increase that overburden I think is an issue that is properly before the Zoning Board. 

Mr. Cordisco: We submitted the traffic report. It's part of the Planning Board's file. You know we are proposing improvements in connection with that and that I believe is an issue that is squarely before the Planning Board. As far as this Board is concerned our application relates to the signage and the side yard setback and I think that that is an answer enough.

 Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the public? Do we have anything else from the Board? 

Mr. Cordisco: Before you close your Public Hearing I would like to say that we did agree to the elimination of the additional unused space on the Quality Inn site so that will reduce our overall number. I don't have the specific number for you right now but it does reduce the overall number.

Mr. Manley: So if the Board was going to make a motion we could word the motion in such a way to exclude the…was it the three spots? With the exception of the Doolittle sign.

Mr. Coppola: We need one of the three.

Mr. Cordisco: We need one of the three for the Doolittle sign. Correct. 

Mr. Manley: So eliminating two out of the three?

Mr. Cordisco: Correct.

Mr. Manley: The two vacant spots.

Mr. Cordisco: Correct.

Mr. Donovan: It would be helpful to know exactly what we're ruling on.

Mr. Manley: Do you have a scale?

Mr. Coppola: I don't think so; let's see if I can do this.

Mr. Donovan: I'm sure the engineer has one because they would never come to a meeting without a scale. 

Mr. Coppola: That total sign is 940 sq.ft. existing so those little signs are a…thank you. Those little signs are 50 sq. ft. each. So…

Mr. Manley: That’s 100 for the two sided and another hundred is 200.

Mr. Coppola: That's exactly right so it would be 940 is what you have minus 200 would be 740. 

Mr. Maher: What's the allowable?

Mr. Coppola: Well the allowable without the Thruway is 210 so our net as we presented it, our variance request as we presented it on the plans is 811.5 so we would subtract 200 from that, would be 611.5.  

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Cordisco: Thank you all very much.

Mr. Coppola: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 8:50 PM)

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MAY 25, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 10:04 PM) 



NOWAB HOTELS CORPORATION
RTE 17K/WEST OF RTE 300, NBGH







(95-1-16 & 17) IB/A ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the side yard setback and for signage for a subdivision of the lot and to build a hotel.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Nowab Hotels Corporation, seeking area variances for the side yard setback and for signage for a subdivision of the lot and to build a hotel. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Ms. Drake: I do feel that they did look at the signs, they did agree to take the billboard down but the fact the hotel or the Holiday Inn only has a 29-ft. square foot allowable is really not sufficient signage for any business really or many businesses that I feel that they did try to reduce this as much as possible. I'll make a motion to approve.   

Mr. Manley: I'll second with just a…I guess with the numbers. I have 611.5 sq. ft. for the Quality Inn and 413 sq. ft. for the Holiday Inn. That's the amount of the variance requested.

Ms. Drake: For that clarification

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K.? Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY




DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ. 

ABSENT: RUTH EATON

 







(Time Noted – 10:05 PM)
ZBA MEETING – MAY 27, 2010             (Time Noted – 8:50 PM) 

GASLAND PETROLEUM INC./HUDSON 
ROUTE 9W/ROBINSON AVENUE & 

       VALLEY AUTO APPRAISERS INC.    NORTH PLANK ROAD, NBGH







(84-1-1.12, 1.2, 2) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an interpretation and an area variance for the front yards setback (s) to build a convenience store and gas station.  

Chairperson Cardone: Next applicant Gasland Petroleum.

Mr. Adams: Good evening my name is Jon Adams, I'm the attorney for the applicant, I'm accompanied by Chris Lapine of Chasen Engineering, the project engineer, Dr. Phil Greeley who is our traffic consultant. Tonight we propose to follow a format suggested by the correspondence from the Board's attorney dated April 15, 2010. If any of the Members of the Board have that letter in front of them they can use that as a reference point. This letter identified issues that the Board wants to address in this third Public Hearing for this particular project so we're simply going to follow the sequence of questions or observations made in that letter and respond to them. The first issue was the traffic study and I'm going to the floor to Dr. Greeley. 

Mr. Greeley: Good evening, Philip Greeley, John Collins Engineers, we prepared the traffic impact study for the site. Just a little bit of history we were involved with a a previous application on this site in 2007 which is when we started our initial traffic work on this site and our initial discussions with the Department of Transportation. A…this a site today has two full-ment access connections to Route 9W…a this is 9W, 84, a North Plank Road, Jamison Place and Crescent Avenue and North just for your orientation. A two full movement access points to Route 9W…a…and it also has access to North Plank Road. Currently this signalized intersection with North Plank Road has restricted movements a, in terms of turning movements entering and exiting onto North Plank Road. The previous application which also called for an expansion of this site we started discussions with the Department of Transportation with the intent of trying to improve some of the conditions along this section of Route 9W specifically trying to accommodate left turn movements at the signalized intersection as opposed to what occurs today where vehicles, you know, turn left in and out of the station. During those discussions we developed a plan with several improvements at the intersection of North Plank, Robinson, 9W and what that involved was a replacement of the traffic signal, widening of the east leg of North Plank Road and modifications to the west leg of North Plank Road to remove the island and create a full movement intersection at that point. Traffic coming from the south on 9W would also be able to make a left turn and enter into the station so they wouldn't be stopping in the thru-lane as they do today turning into the station. That was the original application, we went to the Planning Board in February of 2009, there was a letter at the request of the Planning Board's traffic consultant to ask D.O.T. to look at that plan and let me go back a step, in concept D.O.T. was agreeable with those improvements. So essentially this would be a right turn entry and this driveway would be a right turn exit driveway. In February of 2009, I think it was February 5, 2009 the Town…the Planning Board's traffic consultant was asked by the Planning Board to ask D.O.T. if they would even consider further modifications and possible closure of the southerly access drive so that no right turns would come out of there. All exiting traffic movements would occur at the signalized intersection. The D.O.T. had not weighed in on that initially so we went ahead and completed our study, which was submitted to the Board that maintained that as a right turn exit out only. Subsequently, April I think 22nd, the Department of Transportation weighed in and said yeah, if you can get rid of that right turn exit also, bring all the traffic on to North Plank and we liked that even better so we then developed a revised site plan which has all the other components that were discussed with D.O.T. however, this is what the…this is the location the existing driveway. Not only would it be restricted to right turns out it would be eliminated all together. And what that does is it it cleans up this section of 9W, makes it more efficient, does away with some of the accident problems that were out there. And again, a this plan was developed in response to the Department of Transportation's April 22nd I think it was letter. We've discussed this plan with D.O.T. This is acceptable to them. A…the…if you…I think you have were provided with copies of their April 22nd letter they were in conceptual agreement with the plan as it stood at that time with the exception of their recommendation to try to get rid of the right turn exit. So as a result of that this is the current plan that we're working with. Now going back to the traffic study I know that the Board in addition to the issues that D.O.T. and the Planning Board had focused on a…this Board had requested us to not only look at 9W, North Plank but also look at Crescent and Jamison in terms of traffic through the neighborhood etc. So the study that's in front of you deals with the existing traffic conditions as well as projected traffic conditions with the proposed expansion of the facility including the bank. In the traffic study and just to give you a kind of an order of magnitude, this section of 9W in the afternoon rush hour has over 25, 2400 vehicles an hour. O.K.? A North Street…a…has somewhere in the order of 4 to 500 vehicles in an hour. Jamison which is one way southbound and Crescent which is one way northbound really serves the neighborhood but has somewhere in the order of 20 to 30 vehicles in an hour. O.K.? And we measure everything in an hour period because that's how we evaluate intersections and how they operate. So those are kind of the current conditions. One of the problems that occurs today is just the number of turning moves that happens stretch and have been the history of accidents so our plan would actually improve those conditions, make it more orderly, a…become under the signal control and at the cost of this applicant the traffic signal would be replaced which D.O.T. was looking at replacing soon anyway so they were kind of happy to see us come along. And then there would be some widening within the existing rights of way to accommodate the turning movement. In terms of the trip generation for the expanded facility, we've done several of these types of facilities and we also referenced the Institute of Transportation Engineers. In that report, Table 1, which is in appendix B, breaks down the trip generation and I know there was a concern about, you know, the trip generation for the bank. The bank is approximately 1400 sq. ft., which is part of the proposed site plan. During the peak hours that type of square footage bank facility could generate about 20 entering, 20 exiting trips in an hour period. That would be that almost if it was a stand-alone bank. Now what happens in a site like this where you have gas, convenience store, bank you have a lot of shared trips. People that are coming and they do multiple things. So not all those trips would be new but order of magnitude about 20 trips an hour during peak hours. In terms of distribution on to the network a…we had made estimates based on distribution patterns of traffic flows, you know, what traffic would come through the neighborhood let's say and the traffic in the neighborhood would now be able to come out and make a left turn, you know under current conditions there are some people from the neighborhood that come out, they cut through I think it's the Gulf Station here and then they come back anyways because they can't do it at the light today but most people would be provided that benefit. In terms of the amount of additional traffic that we expect now I said the bank was about 20 trips an hour, the expanded convenience store and additional pumps we're looking at about 100 trips additional an hour. Again, a lot of them are attracted from the traffic stream but in terms of if you counted the driveways what you would see in and out of the facility. Now we're anticipating somewhere in the order of 5% of the entering traffic, 5% of the exiting traffic somewhere in that order of magnitude so if you're looking at Jamison in terms of traffic flow outbound that's southbound or enter on Crescent you'd be looking at somewhere in the order of 5 to 7 additional trips potentially in a peak hour. Now that's again based on traffic lines in the area where we expect traffic to come from and also some of those trips even could be from the neighborhood but that that's what would be the additional levels of volume. Those are kind of the key points in the traffic study. As I said, one of the benefits of the plan is to restrict movements at the driveway so it does improve the operation in that section of 9W and that's pretty much the summary of what we've got for you. I'd be happy to answer any questions.

Mr. Adams: Phil, would you clarify relative to the bank what the trip generation is to the bank relative to other permitted uses in the district?

Mr. Greeley: In this zoning district there's a myriad of commercial uses that would be allowed, of course, the convenience facility is allowed. The convenience facility per square foot is a higher generator, absolutely a higher generator than the bank somewhere in the order of three to four times the number of trips per square foot that gets generated. A…if you get a stand-alone gas station would be the same type of thing, other retail uses would be in that order of magnitude or depending on exactly what the retail use could be higher so I think, you know, the bank in terms of allowed trip generation would be less than a lot uses that could go in on this site and again something like the convenience facility probably is the higher end of the generation.

Mr. Manley: So when you combine both you're talking about 120 trips per hour?

Mr. Greeley: About 100 total new trips being generated because some of them are what we call pass by trips. If you look in the traffic report on Table 1 has a breakdown. There all those…what we've done is we also counted for the existing trips that are generated at the current gas station so there's already some on the network but if you look at Table 1…well we have basically an accounting of all the trips and in terms of the new trips we're looking somewhere in the order of just about 90 trips entering, 90 trips exiting that includes the expanded convenience facility and the new bank trips. Again because many of these trips are either attracted from the traffic stream or, you know, some dual purpose trips. 

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, Christopher, you are going to have to get closer to that microphone. You can take it off the stand if you want.

Mr. Lapine: Good evening, Christopher Lapine with the Chasen Companies, as it relates to you, item #4 on Mr. Donovan's list, the written confirmation from the engineer of the City of Newburgh indicating that the plan for this project has been reviewed by their office and conforms to the City plans. I apologize I thought I had left that written confirmation at the March meeting but I will approach the Board and give you that written confirmation right now.

Mr. Lapine approached.

Mr. Adams: The last issue raised in the April 15th letter was the question of an explanation as to how parking calculation was arrived at as well as an explanation as to how it was determined that all the areas shown on the map qualify as parking spaces and I have and I apologize for the summation of this this evening I have a written memo that…

Mr. Adams gave memo to Mr. Lapine to approach the Board and distribute.

…and I'll briefly go over the contents of this memo because I think this is ground that was gone over in the past. The issue has come up several times as to whether or not we can use what I'm going to call the gasoline parking stalls for parking in terms of our parking count. But first of all I should say as a preface the required parking count under the Town of Newburgh parking standard for this particular project given its size and use is 31. We are providing 31 spaces. Among the spaces that we're providing for parking are parking within what I call gasoline-parking stalls. Under the Zoning Law we are permitted to use those stalls as part of our parking count. And quite frankly at the March meeting Mr. Canfield who is sitting behind me confirmed propriety of the use of those spaces as part of our 31 count as the Zoning Law of the Section 18-35 I believe its D-1 says you can consider areas such as that. Its not explicit but you have very broad language to the Zoning Laws of what areas might be considered for parking. So that it is our belief reinforced by the person who is responsible for interpreting the Zoning Law that we satisfy the parking count. I also suggested to the Board that I really don't think that the parking count is before you the appeal tonight is simply on the issue of the side yard variances that we discussed at the prior meeting. However if the Board wants to discuss that issue we're happy to discuss it. It's just that you raised a question as far as this. That concludes our presentation as the issues raised by Mr. Donovan's letters. Obviously I'd be happy to answer any other questions the Board may have.  

Mr. Donovan: Just for the purposes of clarification obviously they're not…they are meant to express the Board's issues not my personal issues.

Mr. Adams: Sorry. I stand corrected.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: I just don't like to have stuff passed out at a meeting where we're expected to vote on the same night. Is there any reason to a delay on this? 

Mr. Adams: The answer is is there any reason it was simply my timetable. But again, this a…what I expressed in my memo quite frankly is the same dialog that has taken place both in January and in March. I've added nothing to it its sort of a recapitulation of the discussions that took place.

Mr. Hughes: I think I'd like a little time in my time schedule to consider all of this.

Mr. Adams: I'd ask that we close the Public Hearing tonight. This is the third Public Hearing. This issue has been well addressed and I think that the Board has an adequate (inaudible) before it. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any comments from the public?    

Mr. Kelson: Todd Kelson, Newburgh, a…its interesting some of the issues were addressed but I really have to say a…the, you know, some of the traffic issues have been addressed in an interesting way because of the changes the D.O.T. is offering. But I'm still trouble by the a…by the proposal to count the…the…we'll call them the gasoline spaces as part of the parking that is required. The dwell time and a…maybe Mr. Greeley can talk about this, the dwell time in a bank has got to be far different from the use that's there now. Right now there's a convenience store there and its one thing to say we're going to count gasoline pump spaces for a gasoline station. That's intuitive. That makes sense. But a bank is different, somebody is going to go in there and people are going to be there for quite a bit more time if this is a full service bank that they're proposing and to use, to count those spaces I think is very problematic and I would urge the Board to use its discretion very carefully before it…before it decides to a…consider those spaces as adequate.

Mr. Hughes: Another thing I have an issue with here is we were described briefly an interface with the D.O.T. but really no summation of what they're going to propose in its entirety and that was not until tonight either. It seems that there's a pattern of this showing up at the meeting, the night that the meeting is going on and the big push and I'm not comfortable with it. 

Mr. Donovan: If I can, I just…its always good at some point in time in a lengthy process to kind of refocus where we are, why we're here, because we are here and, you know, what our role is. We are a Board of appellate jurisdiction. This matter has been referred to us by the Planning Board for consideration of two side yard set backs. There are other issues that are important to the Members of the Board and as I've said before, you don't put blinders on when…when you see those issues. But in terms of the parking calculation, let me just say this, that if you decided that you didn't agree with the parking application and therefore you were going to turn down the variance application that would not be a proper grounds for denial of the application. What we have is a two setbacks and just kind of going through the facts are, what the facts are the non-conformity is actually being decreased with a reorientation and relocation of the existing buildings. So I just want to focus on, you know, the jurisdiction that we have. I'm not asking you to ignore issues that are important to you or issues that you see but at the same point in time it is important to remember what our function is, what our jurisdiction is and what the application before us is.

Mr. Hughes: I'd like you something then maybe I'm confused here. You're suggesting that they are reducing non-conformity and they're knocking building down and making a new building?

Mr. Donovan: No, no what I'm saying is, if I understand the application correctly we have a existing setback on one of the buildings of 3.4 ft. that's being increased to 22.4 ft. albeit still non-conforming the degree of the non-conformity is being reduced and then we have another that was 3.5 ft. and after that building is demolished and relocated its going to be, a…which one, if I have that right, was 4 ft. and will be 8.2 ft? So relative to those issues the side yard setback issues that are before us on the instructions that will remain non-conforming but the degree of non-conformity will be…

Mr. Hughes: Well what's required? What's required for both of those? 

Mr. Donovan: 60 ft. where 8.2 is being provided, 40 ft. where 22.4 ft. is being provided.

Mr. Hughes: So it’s a substantial request?

Mr. Donovan: Let me just talk about that for a second as well because we had a lot of discussion this evening about what constitutes substantiality and we do…the easy way to do it, the typical way to do is by a mathematical calculation. The Appellate Division Courts in the State are pretty clear that the inquiry doesn't stop there. You examine the overall effect of granting the variance. For instance, if you had a situation where you're only increasing two feet from what's required and that two feet constituted 100% variance you would say, oh my God, that's substantial. And the courts would say well you've got to take a little bit more of a common sense approach. You've got to look at the overall effect of granting the variance and the nature of the substantiality of the request. So its not purely or merely a mathematical computation. Your analysis does not end with the mathematical computation and also…there's also been some discussion about, you know, what the criteria is for granting an area variance and we just need…also need to bear in mind that it’s a…it's a balancing test. We balance the five, in an area variance context, we balance the five factors that appear in all of our decisions and as we balance those out giving each factor its own weight. We balance out as to whether the benefit to the applicant is outweighed by any detriment to the neighborhood. And that's the framework for our analysis and even if we find it substantial that finding in and of itself is not grounds to deny the application. If on balance the other four factors would mitigate in favor of granting the variance.

Mr. Hughes: So then my question is, if we have two more lots added to this parent parcel if you'll call it that I asked the applicant if there is any other way you can achieve this without the variance.

Mr. Donovan: And I should add that that's a very fair question.

Mr. Hughes: Well that's all it is. The strike zone is the strike zone. 

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, Mr. Lapine, you have to get closer to that microphone. It's not picking up. Thank you. 

Mr. Lapine: We don't have the ability to…what's that?

Ms. Gennarelli: You have to get closer.

Mr. Lapine: Is that better?

Ms. Gennarelli: Closer.

Mr. Lapine: We don't have the ability to achieve this without the requested variances.

Mr. Hughes: Even with the two additional parcels to which you have?

Mr. Lapine: Yes, sir.

Mr. Hughes: So then you would consider this substantial wouldn't you?

Mr. Lapine: I would consider this a variance that we're here for this evening. 

Mr. Manley: Is there a possibility that the building can be shrunk down just slightly in order to achieve a greater degree of separations, to create a larger distance between, you know, the lines so that the degree of the request is not going to be as high?

Mr. Adams: You're talking about the rear portion?

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, Jon.

Mr. Manley: Correct. 

Ms. Gennarelli: The microphone.

Mr. Lapine: I'm assuming you're talking about the drive-thru area?

Mr. Manley: Correct. 

Mr. Lapine Shrinking that area would impact our circulation around the side of this building.

Mr. Manley: Well I'm saying if you eliminate the drive-thru.

Mr. Lapine: One of the desires of the bank is to have a drive-thru with their proposed use. The drive-thrus are a permitted use with banks.     

Mr. Manley: Well I understand it's permitted but by the elimination of that overhang that would give you some additional feet to work with.

Mr. Lapine: Correct. You are correct however for the intended use we would be able (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: It's not picking up.

Mr. Adams: I would note, I would like to supplement his interpretation of (inaudible) question is an alternative consistent with the applicant's objectives? Or is there an alternative method, I'm sorry, consistent with the applicant's objective by which this could be done without obtaining the variance and the answer is given the applicants objectives here there is no alternative way. I…I think you left out a…that credible phrase quite frankly.

Mr. Donovan: The issue being is it the minimum variance required to grant the applicant the relief being requested. That's the general framework of analysis. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any thing further from the Board? Any thing further from the public? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we close the Hearing.

Ms. Drake: I'll second that.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: No



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight's applications. I would ask you, in the interest of time, if you would wait out in the hallway and we will call you back in shortly.

(Time Noted – 9:20 PM)

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MAY 27, 2010    (Resumption for decision: 10:05 PM) 



GASLAND PETROLEUM INC./HUDSON 
ROUTE 9W/ROBINSON AVENUE & 

       VALLEY AUTO APPRAISERS INC.    NORTH PLANK ROAD, NBGH







(84-1-1.12, 1.2, 2) B ZONE

Applicant is seeking an interpretation and an area variance for the front yards setback (s) to build a convenience store and gas station.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Gasland Petroleum Inc. seeking area variance for the front yards setback (s) to build a convenience store and gas station (and bank). This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: There's a lot of things going on on this corner that's small to begin with and from where I sit my perspective is its going to have a severe impact on the residential neighborhood and those streets. I'm not really clear and haven't been told what the D.O.T. recommendation improvements are going to be with the new signals and the intersections and the turn outs and so on. I'd like to know a little bit more about it and be more in harmony with the rest of the Boards that are looking at this thing. I would like to restrain from making a decision on it tonight until I'm more well informed on this. 

Mr. Manley: I…a…from my perspective I think that, you know, there are things that the applicant can do although they may not wish to make those decisions but I think it can be accomplished, the size of the structure can be accomplished or reconfigured in a different way to kind of reduce the amount of variance requested. I just think that the way it's positioned, they could eliminate the drive-thru. I mean there's things I think they can do to reduce the size of the variance even further that would make it more palatable for that neighborhood.

Ms. Drake: Meaning its not meeting the minimum necessary…?

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Ms. Drake: …for a area variance? I agree. 

Chairperson Cardone: Ron, were you talking about reserving decision on this? 

Mr. Hughes: Either reserving decision or giving the applicant another opportunity to find a better way to achieve with less offensive requirements. 

Mr. Manley: But they could do that through another submission. I mean they could resubmit an application with changes.

Mr. Hughes: Well that would be acceptable too. I'm not trying to pin it down to one or the other. My suggestion is that if there is a way that the applicant can further their position by making all of the stuff that's required less offensive I'd be more inclined to go in that direction that what we've been given so far.

Mr. Donovan: I don't know, for purposes of clarity, how clear that that is necessarily and we do need to bear in mind that we did close the Public Hearing. We have sixty-two days to render a decision.

Mr. Hughes: Well then so be it.

Mr. Donovan: But I mean if…if…I don't know what else you're…I can't figure out what else asking for. So if you're asking something additional I think you need to provide clarity in what you're asking for on the one hand and on the other hand we'll have to come to grips with the situation of the fact that we closed the Public Hearing. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. well I shouldn't say anything further at point until it comes to a vote.

Mr. Donovan: I don't…I would never stop you from saying anything.

Mr. Hughes: Well I know that but…

Chairperson Cardone: And I repeat my question, did you want to make a motion to reserve decision?

Mr. Hughes: I do.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a second to that motion? 

Mr. McKelvey: I'll second.  

Mr. Donovan: Now that's simply to exercise your right to take up to sixty-two days before you issue your decision. Is that your decision?

Chairperson Cardone: That's correct. 

Mr. Donovan: And will this be on next month's agenda for consideration or…?

Chairperson Cardone: Under Other Business, yes.

Mr. Donovan: Right. O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: But we'll get to have a vote on that.

Mr. Donovan: Oh, I'm sorry. Yes. I'm sorry.             

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: No

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion to Reserve Decision is carried.
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ERIC & JULIA GOINGS-PERROT

9 WINDING LANE, NBGH







(80-1-10) R-1 ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: Under Other Board Business we have a request from Julia Goings-Perrot.  I am writing to request a 6-month extension of the variance we received from the Town of Newburgh on November 24, 2009. The property is our residence located at 9 Winding Lane, Newburgh. The extension is necessary because our contractor, Rieger Homes, informed us in April 2010 that it was canceling our agreement because they got too busy with other projects. Rieger Homes is assisting us in transitioning the project to C.D. & Sons Masonry, Inc. as contractor. We are finalizing the technical drawings and intend to submit them with our application for a building permit within 2-3 weeks of this letter and for construction to start in June. O.K. Do we have a motion for approval on this extension?

Mr. Hughes: What was the expiration date of their…?

Chairperson Cardone: They received their variance November the 24th.

Mr. Hughes: So May 24th would be the six months?

Chairperson Cardone: Right, and they sent this on May the 17th.

Mr. McKelvey: They are within their rights. I'll make a motion we grant it.

Mr. Hughes: Second. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes
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GDP AMODEO PARTNERS, LLC 
       UNION AVE (RTE 300) & ORR AVE, NBGH






       (96-1-6, 7, 8, 9, 11.1, 95-1-37.2, 36) IB ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: I have another request this one from the Shoppes at Union Square, the Town of Newburgh Zoning Board of Appeals granted variances for the above referenced project on November 24, 2009. The project received Final Site Plan Approval on December the 17th, 2009. I would like to request a six-month extension of our Zoning variance for the above referenced project. It is our intent to break ground in the near future. Adrian Goddard. And their time started not on November the 24th but December the 17th because that's when they received their final site plan approval from the Planning Board. 

Mr. Hughes: So they just expire June 17th? 

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we grant it 

Ms. Drake: Second. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. 
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OTHER BOARD BUSINESS

Chairperson Cardone: There are a couple of items I'd like to bring to the attention of the Board. One is the Town of Newburgh Notice of the Public Hearing on a proposed Local Law and everyone has a copy of that. If anyone has anything they would like to consider that we should give a reply to the Town Board then please get that to me in writing. Also if you recall, we sent a letter to the Town Board they had a proposed zoning change on Home Occupations and we had sent them a letter because we had some concerns about the way that the…the wording on Law. In the meantime they have taken that into consideration and I have a letter, which I'll read to you. Dear Grace: Enclosed please find the above referenced red lined draft Introductory Local Law which I'm forwarding to the ZBA for its review and comments in accordance with the direction of the Town Board. The most important revision in the draft Local Law attempts to address the ZBA's previous comments by substituting for the listing of specific types of business certain outdoor on-premise work activities which neighbors of premises having Home Occupations in residential zones frequently find offensive and which do not fit within the concept that a Home Occupations work activity should occur within the dwelling or an accessory building, not outside. The Town Board would appreciate the ZBA's prompt input. Should you have any questions in this regard please do not hesitate to contact me, Mark Taylor. I know that some people may have received this tonight, other people received it through their e-mail if you have any comments please get those to me in writing. I have a letter from Tilford Stiteler, the Code Compliance Supervisor: Recently an application was submitted for a Building Permit to build an accessory structure, a shed. The owner's property has road frontage on Chapel Road and the New York State Thruway, see enclosed site plan. Mark Taylor's opinion is per street definition that since the owner does not have access to his property from the Thruway this definition does not apply and the owner does not have two front yards. Section 185-15 (B) states 'No such building should project closer to the fronting street than the front of the main building'.  Since we have sent applicants to the ZBA for this very same scenario, an example, Amber Fields and Route 84, Coach Lane and Route 84, we need a determination since we have already set a precedent by sending people for variances. I agree with Mark on this and if the Board agrees this would certainly help the residents by creating less of a hardship. Thank you for your help in this matter. O.K. Questions, comments? 

No response. 

Chairperson Cardone: My own opinion is that I think these should be decided on a case-by-case basis.

Ms. Drake: I concur.  

Mr. Hughes: If we could have our counsel write a note to the Town attorney to that effect?

Mr. Donovan: Well…

Chairperson Cardone: Not to the Town attorney.

Mr. Donovan: I'll reply to the…

Mr. McKelvey: Tilford.

Mr. Donovan: Code Compliance Supervisor.

Mr. Canfield: Building Inspector.

Mr. Donovan: What?

Mr. Canfield: Assistant Building Inspector.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. Just the title he put on his letter.

Mr. Canfield: I see that.

Chairperson Cardone: I was reading from the letter.

Mr. Donovan: Dear sir.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Is there any other business? Has everyone had a chance to read the minutes from the last month? Do we have any corrections, additions or deletions?

No response. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to approve those minutes?

Mr. Maher: I'll make a motion.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor say Aye?

Aye - All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to close the meeting?

Mr. Hughes: So adjourned.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor say Aye?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone:  Thank you.  The meeting is adjourned.
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